
The MetroHealth System

Board of Trustees
Wednesday, September 27, 2023

5:00 - 7:00 pm

The MetroHealth System K-107 or via Zoom

Board of Trustees

Regular Meeting



The MetroHealth System Board of Trustees 

FULL BOARD REGULAR MEETING 

DATE: Wednesday, September 27, 2023 
TIME: 5:00 – 7:00 pm 
PLACE: The MetroHealth Board Room (K-107) or Zoom 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84311460400 

AGENDA 

I. Approval of Minutes
Minutes of August 23, 2023, regular meeting of the Board of Trustees

II. Mission Moment

III. Committee Reports
A. Compensation Committee – Dr. Walker
B. Audit & Compliance Committee – M. Dee

IV. President and CEO’s Report – A. Steed

V. Medical Staff Report – C. Alexander-Rager
A. Approval of Medical Staff Provider Appointments, Actions and

Reappointments for August 2023
B. Acceptance of Medical Executive Committee Minutes of August 11, 2023

VI. Information Items
A. The MetroWAY Forward – Dr. Golob and D. Watson

VII. Executive Session

Return to Open Meeting 

VIII. Recommendation/Resolutions
A. Approval of a Claim Settlement

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84311460400


The MetroHealth System Board of Trustees 

1 

FULL BOARD REGULAR MEETING 

Wednesday, August 23, 2023 
5:00 – 7:00 pm 

The MetroHealth System Brooklyn Heights Campus 
 Room B-102 

Meeting Minutes 

Trustees: Inajo Chappell-I, John Corlett-I, Maureen Dee-I, John Hairston-R, 
John Moss-I, JB Silvers-I, E. Harry Walker, M.D.-I, Vanessa Whiting-R 1 

Staff: Airica Steed, Ed.D,-I, Anise Ardelt, M.D., Ph.D-I Laura Black-I, 
Richard Blinkhorn, M.D.,-I, Kate Brown-I, Nabil Chehade, M.D.-I, 
Alfred Connors, M.D.-R, Will Dubé-I, Joseph Golob, M.D.,-I, Joseph 
Frolik-I, Geoff Himes-I, Olusegun Ishmael, M.D.,-I, Julie Jacono-I, 
Kinsey Jolliff-I,  Melissa Kline-I, William Lewis, M.D.,-I, Laura 
McBride-I, Alan Nevel-I, Sarah Partington-I,  Alison Poulios-I, 
Christine Alexander-Rager, M.D.-R, Sonja Rajki-I 

Guests: Suzanne Aral-Boutros-R, Gail Long-R, Sabrina Roberts-I, Julie 
Washington-I 

Dr. Walker called the meeting to order at 5:15 pm, in accordance with Section 339.02(K) of 
the Ohio Revised Code with a quorum present. 

(The minutes are written in a format conforming to the printed meeting agenda for the convenience 
of correlation, recognizing that some of the items were discussed out of sequence.) 

I. Approval of Minutes

The minutes of the June 28, 2023, regular Board Meeting were unanimously approved as 
submitted. RESOLUTION NO. 19579  

II. Committee Reports

A. Quality, Safety & Experience Committee
Dr. Walker summarized that the committee had a robust discussion, touching on a Patient
Experience story, the committee recommended to approve the System’s commitment to
maintain a Level I Adult and Level II Pediatric Trauma Center and received an update on

1 I-In-person, R-Remote 



The MetroHealth System Board of Trustees 

2 

the Behavioral Health Hospital from Drs. Bruner and Badgaiyan. Dr. Golob gave an update 
on the Quality, Safety and Experience work. 

B. Finance Committee
Mr. Moss summarized that the Finance Committee and the Investment Sub Committee
met with the System’s investment advisor who gave an update on the investments of the
System. Mr. Himes gave an update on the System’s second quarter performance, with
EBIDA performance. Mr. Moss summarized that overall, the System had a slight decrease
in its assets and a slight decrease in liabilities and has approximately 147 days cash on
hand.

III. Approval of Consent Agenda

Quality, Safety & Experience Committee 

A. The Board unanimously approved the Resolution for the Reaffirmation of Commitment
to Maintain a Level I Adult and Level II Pediatric Trauma Center at The MetroHealth
System RESOLUTION NO. 19576

Finance Committee 

B. The Board approved the Resolution for the Approval of Financial and Operational
Transformation and Optimization Project, with Ms. Chappell noting that she cast an
opposing the vote on the resolution. RESOLUTION NO. 19577

IV. President and CEO’s Report

Dr. Steed referred to her written President and CEO’s report and noted a change in the 
design which includes a score card with metrics and actions on the System’s goals. This 
will be the format moving forward and has been designed for full transparency, improving 
communications, and allows all to see the progress of the organization.  

Dr. Steed highlighted that The MetroHealth System was recognized as number one in Ohio 
for its Contributions to Community Health. We continue to see extraordinary results from 
our quality and service metrics due to our caregiver’s focus on patient safety, quality and 
care, and high reliability. She highlighted that the System has significantly reduced the 
number of patients who leave our Emergency Departments unseen and the length of stay 
in Acute Care and Specialty Care has decreased. Within the last four to five months, The 
MetroHealth System has reduced length of stay by one-half day, which is a significant 
accomplishment. She also highlighted that the System has been recognized nationally as 



The MetroHealth System Board of Trustees 

3 

a top performer in first case on-time starts in operating rooms, which is an important 
efficiency metric.  

Dr. Steed also shared that the Behavioral Health hospital has recently started providing 
onsite psychiatric emergency services and strengthened the behavioral health service line 
with the recently announced partnership with University Hospitals to provide physician 
collaboration at the Cleveland Heights behavioral health hospital. Lastly, she highlighted 
the System’s focus on optimizing the workforce by reducing turnover and recruiting new 
talent, and within the last 90 days, the System has filled over 120 nursing positions and 
has shown a 40% reduction in turnover rate within the last quarter.  

Dr. Steed concluded her report by providing an update on the Executive Leadership 
positions, introducing Dalph Watson as the Chief People Officer who joined July 24,  
Jim Bicak, SVP Facilities, Campus Transformation and Construction who will be joining on 
August 28, 2023, and noting that the search for the EVP, Chief Financial Officer and the 
process should be completed by the end of the week. Dr. Steed thanked Geoff Himes for 
his service as Interim CFO and his continued dedication to The MetroHealth System and 
for his participation in the search of his replacement; along with Alan Nevel, who chaired 
the search committee for this the CFO.  

V. Medical Staff Report

Dr. Alexander reported that there was no MEC meeting in August and referred the Board 
to the Medical Staff Appointments, Reappointments and Actions. Dr. Alexander pointed 
out that there is higher turnover in June and July and that is expected due to the 
academic year.  She also provided information on an Emerging Leaders Group which 
identifies junior and mid-level medical staff members and provides them with education 
on finance, operations, academics, and group projects. The first cohort group is 
graduating from the program, and she noted that some participants have been named 
into leadership positions, such as Division Chiefs, Fellowship Directors, and Associate 
Director for Medical Affairs.  

The Board considered the Medical Staff Appointments, Reappointments and MEC Minutes 
from June and July 2023. The Board unanimously approved the same via RESOLUTION 
19580.  

VI. Information Items

A. Board Liaison Position
Dr. Walker related that the Board Liaison position had been placed on hold but wanted to
have the Board consider how to proceed with the position moving forward. After



The MetroHealth System Board of Trustees 

4 

discussion, the board agreed that the position should be budgeted for 2024 and work 
should be done to look to fill the position with a targeted start date in January 2024. 

B. Annual Conflict of Interest Disclosures
Dr. Walker introduced Sarah Partington to address the annual conflicts of interest process.
Ms. Partington reviewed the conflict of interest policy and the annual conflict of interest
process for the Board.  She provided a presentation on conflict of interest and Ohio Ethics
Laws and reminded the Trustees about the conflict of interest completion timeframes and
pointed them to the materials that were shared including Conflict of Interest and Ohio
Ethics Law Information sheet and reference guides.

Ms. Partington answered Trustees questions about the process and specific questions 
regarding certain potential disclosures.  In response to a Trustee question, Ms. McBride 
described how confidentiality of responses will be handled. 

Dr. Walker then asked for a motion to recess into executive session to discuss hospital 
trade secrets as defined by ORC 1333.61; to conference with an attorney for the public 
body concerning disputes involving the public body that are subject to pending or 
imminent court action. Mr. Moss made a motion and Mr. Corlett seconded. The Board held 
a roll call vote with all Trustees in attendance voting to approve the motion to go into 
executive session for the purposes stated by Dr. Walker. 

Members of the public were excused. The Board went into executive session to discuss the 
identified matters at 5:54 pm.  

VII. Executive Session

Following the executive session, the meeting reconvened in open session at approximately 
7:31 pm and welcomed back the public via Zoom and those members of the public who 
were in-person. 

VIII. Recommendation/Resolutions Approvals

Dr. Walker informed the group of the discussion in executive session for a Resolution for 
Approval of a Claim Settlement.  Dr. Walker stated the Trustees heard from Ms. McBride 
the background on the proposed resolution.  He asked if there was any discussion needed 
on the proposed resolution. 

A. Approval of a Claim Settlement
The Board unanimously approved the resolution for the Approval of a Claim Settlement.
RESOLUTION NO. 19578.



The MetroHealth System Board of Trustees 

5 

There being no further business to bring before the Board, the meeting was adjourned. 

THE METROHEALTH SYSTEM 

E. Harry Walker, MD, Chairperson

NEXT MEETING: Wednesday, September 27, 2023 
 5:00 – 7:00 pm 
The MetroHealth Board Room (K-107) or via Zoom 



Trustees, 

One of the things that drew me to MetroHealth was this organization’s willingness to step up to 
help when others cannot or refuse to do so. In every sense of the word, MetroHealth is an 
essential hospital. 

That is why we were so thrilled this month to announce our collaboration with the ADAMHS Board 
of Cuyahoga County. and St. Vincent Charity to open a new behavioral health Crisis Center in 
Cleveland’s Central neighborhood. When it opens in fall 2024, MetroHealth caregivers will run this 
facility, making it a true extension of our System. It will include crisis intake and receiving, 
psychiatric emergency services and a crisis stabilization unit. 

This news pairs well with the recent announcement that we would partner with University 
Hospitals to allow more individuals to receive timely behavioral health care in Northeast Ohio. As 
part of that agreement, UH clinicians work alongside our providers to serve patients at our new 
Cleveland Heights Behavioral Health Hospital. 

These advances cut to the heart of what we are about: innovating and collaborating to solve our 
community’s most pressing needs. 

The same could be said about our Multicultural Women’s Health Fair & Empowerment Expo this 
Saturday, September 30, at the Huntington Convention Center of Cleveland. This is a perfect 
avenue for us to engage with our community and address the health disparities we talk about. 
This signature event, a collaboration with the Vernon Family Foundation, will offer free health 
screenings, health talks, career development opportunities, community resources and so much 
more. 

We expect 2,000 women to join us for what promises to be an inspiring and affirming day. A 
focus on the health of women, especially minority women, is long overdue in our community. 
Cleveland was named the least livable city for Black women – a narrative we are determined to 
change. 

As you will see in this month’s report, we continue to show progress on several metrics that ladder 
up to our ultimate goal of lifting the health and wealth of the communities we serve. For 
example: 

• We continue to see tremendous progress in our quality and safety metrics. In July, for
example, we recorded 0.52 harms per 1,000 patient days. This is the best single month
performance in several years and is a testament to our caregivers’ laser-focus on safety.
We are seeing a 24% improvement compared to last year.

• Thanks to diligence of our Environmental Services team, we have seen a 4.3%
improvement year to date in our hospital cleanliness scores. We feel this is largely due to 
new the new cleaning process we put in place when we opened The Glick Center.

• Because of our focused efforts on improving access, we have 2.8% more unique patients
in our outpatient settings compared to last year. Through the concerted efforts of a



multidisciplinary team, we have worked to improve customer service as well 
as coordinating with providers to expand appointment opportunities. 

• Our Hospital Division continues to see significant improvements – Emergency
Department visits, inpatient discharges and surgical volumes are exceeding last year’s
performance. Year-to-date inpatient net revenue growth is a strong 3.2%.

• Through August, our turnover rate has reduced by 16.8% compared to this point last year 
– a testament to our focus on building a people-first culture. To continue to improve this
figure, we have developed targeted action plant to improve retention in
departments/units with high turnover rates.

Fortifying MetroHealth’s financial position remains a top priority, and we are pleased to welcome 
Derrick Hollings, CPA, to MetroHealth as our new Executive Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer. Hollings, who starts September 18, has more than 30 years of financial leadership 
experience at academic and safety-net hospitals. Since 2016, he has served as CFO at Hennepin 
Healthcare, a Level 1 Adult and Pediatric Trauma hospital in Minneapolis. We are fortunate to 
have a leader with his credentials joining us at this crucial time. 

Please join me in thanking Geoff Himes, MBA, who graciously came out of retirement in March 
to serve as our interim CFO. Geoff’s tremendous talent and composure have been extraordinarily 
important to me and this institution, and under his leadership, we have begun our financial and 
operational transformation. 

Speaking of our transformation, earlier this month, our team met to take the first step on a 
journey of nonstop continuous improvement that will lead us into a vibrant and distinguished 
future. We are calling this the MetroWAY Forward. 

MetroHealth senior leaders met in a daylong retreat to design this cultural journey that will guide 
us from where we are now to where we want to go and how we will get there – to guide us in the 
way we do, what we do, every day. 

That all-day strategy session resulted in the beginning development of a plan that will serve as 
the blueprint for how all 8,700 MetroHealth employees will work going forward as we strive for our 
True North: creating a people-first culture that delivers the highest quality care, research, 
innovation, education and training as we engage with the community to create a national model 
for the most equitable health care possible. I look forward to sharing more with you about this 
exciting journey. 

As always, thank you for support, guidance and, most of all, your deep commitment to this 
storied institution and the individuals we serve. 

Best, 

Airica Steed, Ed.D, RN, MBA, FACHE 
President & CEO 
The MetroHealth System 



P







•

•

•
•

•





•

•

•



•
•

•
•

•

•

•
•

•

•

•

•
•
•



•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•



•

•

•



•

•



•



•

•



•

•

•



•

•

•



•

•

•

•







•

•

•

https://www.news5cleveland.com/a-better-land/metrohealth-gives-hope-to-heal-communities-fix-health-disparities
https://www.wkyc.com/video/news/health/you-are-not-alone-metrohealth-and-university-hospitals-teaming-up-to-address-growing-mental-health-care-crisis/95-e2c840d2-a08d-4c1a-b4d8-10a3559970e8
https://www.wkyc.com/video/news/health/you-are-not-alone-metrohealth-and-university-hospitals-teaming-up-to-address-growing-mental-health-care-crisis/95-e2c840d2-a08d-4c1a-b4d8-10a3559970e8
https://www.ideastream.org/health/2023-08-30/metrohealth-behavioral-health-crisis-center-planned-at-former-st-vincent-hospital
https://www.ideastream.org/health/2023-08-30/metrohealth-behavioral-health-crisis-center-planned-at-former-st-vincent-hospital
https://www.beckershospitalreview.com/nursing/i-never-said-no-to-an-opportunity-metrohealths-chief-nursing-officer-on-change.html
https://www.beckershospitalreview.com/hospital-physician-relationships/the-most-underrated-roles-in-healthcare.html
https://www.beckershospitalreview.com/hospital-physician-relationships/the-most-underrated-roles-in-healthcare.html
https://www.beckershospitalreview.com/oncology/what-5-cancer-leaders-are-most-excited-about-in-2023.html
https://news.metrohealth.org/metrohealth-appoints-chief-financial-officer/
https://news.metrohealth.org/adamhs-board-metrohealth-and-st-vincent-charity-partner-to-open-behavioral-health-crisis-center-in-clevelands-central-neighborhood/
https://news.metrohealth.org/adamhs-board-metrohealth-and-st-vincent-charity-partner-to-open-behavioral-health-crisis-center-in-clevelands-central-neighborhood/
https://news.metrohealth.org/metrohealth-and-the-vernon-family-foundation-partner-to-present-inaugural-multicultural-womens-health-fair--empowerment-expo/
https://news.metrohealth.org/metrohealth-and-the-vernon-family-foundation-partner-to-present-inaugural-multicultural-womens-health-fair--empowerment-expo/
https://vimeo.com/861289559?share=copy
https://vimeo.com/859153171?share=copy
https://www.facebook.com/metrohealthCLE/posts/683501713811634
https://www.instagram.com/p/CwsJoM2AaUj/


•

•

•



•

•

•

•

https://www.metrohealth.org/womens-health-expo


•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•



•

•



•

•

•



The following Appointments to the MetroHealth System Medical Staff will be reviewed by the Credentials Committee on August 
15, 2023. The appointments will then be reviewed and accepted by the Medical Executive Committee on September 8, 2023. 

Active 
Name Department Division Effective 
Lewis, Andrew, DO  Medicine Pulmonary Medicine 8/16/2023 
Naik, Akash, MD Otolaryngology 8/16/2023 
Nandar, Phoo Pwint, MD Medicine  Cardiology 8/16/2023 
Wang, Yan, MD Pathology 8/16/2023 

Associate 
Name Department Division Effective 
Chirdon, Anne, APRN-CRNA  Anesthesiology  8/16/2023 
Jiang, Ailin, APRN-CRNA Anesthesiology  8/16/2023 
Passafiume, Erin, APRN-CNP  Family Medicine 8/16/2023 
Peters, Francine, APRN-CNP  Pediatrics Neonatology 8/16/2023 
Rodriguez, Clairissa, APRN-CNP Neurology 8/16/2023 

Privileged Non-Member 
Name  Department Division Effective 
Bondarev, Sergey, MD Radiology 8/16/2023 
Heather, John, MD Psychiatry 8/16/2023 
Kimmel, Susan, MD Psychiatry 8/16/2023 
Reed, Eric, MD  Psychiatry 8/16/2023 



The following actions to the MetroHealth System Medical Staff will be reviewed by the Credentials Committee on August 15, 2023. 
The Actions will then be reviewed by the Medical Executive Committee on September 8, 2023. 

Resignations 
Name  Department Division End Date 
Cottom, Elizabeth, APRN-CNM  OB/GYN 8/7/2023-R 
Horwath, Ewald, MD  Psychiatry 8/1/2023-RT 
Malik, Mohammad, MD Orthopaedics  7/31/2023-CC 
Raymond, Lindsey, APRN-CNP  Medicine Infectious Disease 8/15/2023-RL 
Wise, Anne, MD Family Medicine 7/13/2023-R 

CC=Contract Complete, Fellowship Complete 
R=Resigned 
RL-Relocated 
RT-Retired 
ET-Employment Terminated 
CT-Contract Terminated 



The following Appointments to the MetroHealth System Medical Staff will be reviewed by the Credentials Committee on August 
29, 2023. The appointments will then be reviewed and accepted by the Medical Executive Committee on September 8, 2023. 

Active 
Name Department Division Effective 
Fajobi, Olufunke, MD  Psychiatry 8/30/2023 
Kolaczko, Jensen, MD  Orthopaedics 8/30/2023 
Shammassian, Berje, MD Neurosurgery 8/30/2023 
Wong, Richard, MD  Medicine Gastroenterology 8/30/2023 

Associate 
Name Department Division Effective 
Fearon, Shanique, APRN-CNP Medicine Hospital Medicine 8/30/2023 

Privileged Non-Member 
Name  Department Division Effective 
Boniface, Nicholas, MD  Surgery  Trauma/Burn/Critical Care 8/29/2023 
Endres, Tori, MD Pediatric Pulmonary Medicine  8/30/2023 
Goodman, Lorenda, APRN-CNP Psychiatry 8/30/2023 
Kennedy, James, APRN-CNP  Psychiatry 8/30/2023 
Lee, Jessica, MD Neurology 8/30/2023 
Waghray, Abhijeet, MD  Medicine Gastroenterology 8/30/2023 
Wiggins, Morgan, APRN-CNP  Psychiatry 8/30/2023 
Whitehair, Dawn, APRN-CNP  Psychiatry 8/30/2023 
Whitman, Daniel, MD  Medicine Gastroenterology 8/30/2023 

*Non Reviewable Clean List
Privileged Non-Member
Name Department Division Effective 
Mally, Emily, LISW-S Infectious Disease Social Work 8/30/2023 
Ware, Andrea, LISW-S Psychiatry Social Work 8/30/2023 



The following Appointments to the MetroHealth System Medical Staff will be reviewed by the Credentials Committee on 
September 12, 2023. The appointments will then be reviewed and accepted by the Medical Executive Committee on October 13, 
2023. 

Active 
Name Department Division Effective 
Abi Karam, Mariana, MD Surgery  Ophthalmology 9/13/2023 
Asamoto Kim, Lisa, MD Family Medicine 9/13/2023 
Graham, Kathleen, MD  Dermatology  9/13/2023 
Haryadi, Stephanus, MD Medicine/Pediatrics 9/13/2023 
Yildirim, Baris, MD  Orthopaedics  9/13/2023 

Associate 
Name Department Division Effective 
Abounader, Laura, APRN-CNP PM&R Pain Management 9/13/2023 

Privileged Non-Member 
Name  Department Division Effective 
Johnson, Cassidy, PA-C  Surgery  Cardiothoracic  9/13/2023 
Turney, Eric, MD Surgery  Vascular Surgery 9/13/2023 

*Non Reviewable Clean List
Privileged Non-Member
Name Department Division Effective 
Schulte, Kirsten, DO Emergency Medicine 9/13/2023 



  THE METROHEALTH SYSTEM 
MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

September 20, 2023 
Room K107 

CHAIRPERSON: Christine Alexander-Rager, MD CALLED TO ORDER:  7:00 AM 
 ADOURNED:    9:00 AM

RECORDER: Carol Herbert  
Members Present: Drs. Christine Alexander, Natalie Joseph, Ellen Gelles, Catherine Curley, Agnes Loeffler, David Stepnick, Gregory Heintschel, Ms. 
Brittany Valenzeno and Patricia Gallagher 
Members Remote:  Christopher Brandt, Aparna Roy, Patricia Gallagher, Brittany Valenzeno, Thomas Collins, Code Adebambo, Aparna Roy, Anise Ardelt, 
David Crowe, John Wilber, James Campbell, Lynn Milliner, Michael Kelly, Venkat Krishnamurthy, Ellen Gelles, Catherine Curley, Anise Ardelt, Luis 
Tollinche, Holly Perzy, Donald Wiper 
Guests:  Dr. Joanna Brell, Christina Wadswoth 
Exec.Ofc:  Drs. Olegusen Ishmael, E. Harry Walker, William Lewis 

ITEM TITLE/PRESENTER RECOMMENDATION/ACTIONS/MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS EVALUATION- 
Follow-up 

Call to Order Christine Alexander-
Rager, MD 

Opening Remarks and Business: 

• Welcome to Dr. Harry Walker. Best wishes to Dr. Christopher Brandt as he
steps back from Chairman of the Department of Surgery.

• Introduction of the Laboratory Formulary/Utilization Committee of the MEC. Dr.
Agnes Loeffler. Motion Carries to add the formulation of the new Laboratory
Formulary/ Utilization Committee as a Medical Executive Committee.

Laboratory 
Formulary Committe 

N/A 



     MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES -PAGE 2 9/8/2023  
ITEM TITLE/PRESENTER RECOMMENDATION/ACTIONS/MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS EVALUATION- 

Follow-up 

Minutes of the 
Previous 
Meetings 

MEC minutes, 
Credentialing 
Committee minutes 
and Medical Record 
Committee Minutes 
were reviewed and 
approved 

Minutes from August’s virtual meeting 

August Virtual MEC 
minutes.docx

Minutes approved/ 
Present the MEC 
Minutes  
to BOT 

Medical Staff 
Appointments 
and Actions 

All medical staff 
appointments were 
carefully reviewed and 
presented by the 
Department 
Chairpersons.  Each 
candidate is being 
presented after 
approval from the 
Credentials 
Committee from the 
previous month. Each 
Candidate’s file was 
reviewed for any 
actions or sanctions, 
clinical competency, 
work history.  All gaps 
were accounted for 
and presentation of 
the practitioner’s 
education and training 
was discussed.  The 
committee reviewed 
the requested 
privileges and verified 
the provider will 
function within their 
scope of education 
and license. The 
NPDB reports, 
malpractice cases and 

Active 
Name Department/Division Effective 
Lewis, Andrew, DO Medicine/Pulmonary Medicine 8/16/2023 
Naik, Akash, MD Otolaryngology 8/16/2023 
Nandar, Phoo Pwint, MD Medicine Cardiology 8/16/2023 
Wang, Yan, MD  Pathology 8/16/2023 

Associate 
Name Department/Division Effective 
Chirdon, Anne, APRN-CRNA Anesthesiology 8/16/2023 
Jiang, Ailin, APRN-CRNA Anesthesiology 8/16/2023 
Passafiume, Erin, APRN-CNP Family Medicine 8/16/2023 
Peters, Francine, APRN-CNP Pediatrics/Neonatology 8/16/2023 
Rodriguez,Clairissa, APRN-CNPNeurology 8/16/2023 

Privileged Non-Member 
Name Department/Division Effective 
Bondarev, Sergey, MD Radiology 8/16/2023 
Heather, John, MD Psychiatry 8/16/2023 
Kimmel, Susan, MD Psychiatry 8/16/2023 
Reed, Eric, MD Psychiatry 8/16/2023 

The following actions to the MetroHealth System Medical Staff will be reviewed by the 
Credentials Committee on August 15, 2023 and are presented to the MEC on 9/8/23 for 

review and approval 
Resignation 
Name Department/Division End Date 
Cottom, Elizabeth, APRN-CNM OB/GYN 8/7/2023-R 

Motion carries 
to approve. 
Present to  
BOT 



     MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES -PAGE 3 9/8/2023  
ITEM TITLE/PRESENTER RECOMMENDATION/ACTIONS/MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS EVALUATION- 

Follow-up 

any health issues 
were discussed, and a 
legal representative 
was present at the 
Credentials 
Committee.   

All additional 
privileges were 
discussed and verified 
ongoing monitoring of 
NPDB is being 
performed.   

Horwath, Ewald, MD Psychiatry 8/1/2023-RT 
Malik, Mohammad, MD Orthopaedics 7/31/2023-CC 
Raymond, Lindsey, APRN-CNP Medicine /Infectious Disease 8/15/2023-RL 
Wise, Anne, MD Family Medicine 7/13/2023-R 

CC=Contract Complete, Fellowship Complete 
R=Resigned 
RL-Relocated 
RT-Retired 
ET-Employment Terminated 
CT-Contract Terminated 

The following Appointments to the MetroHealth System Medical Staff will be reviewed 
by the Credentials Committee on August 29, 2023. The appointments will then be 

reviewed and accepted by the Medical Executive Committee on September 8, 2023. 
ActiveName    Departmen/Division   Effective 
Fajobi, Olufunke, MD  Psychiatry 8/30/2023 
Kolaczko, Jensen, MD  Orthopaedics   8/30/2023 
Shammassian, Berje, MD Neurosurgery  8/30/2023 
Wong, Richard, MD Medicine/Gastroenterology 8/30/2023 

Associate 
Name Department/Division Effective 
Fearon, Shanique, APRN-CNP Medicine/Hospital Medicine 8/30/2023 

Privileged Non-Member 
Name Department/Division Effective 
Boniface, Nicholas, MD  Surgery/Trauma/Burn/Critical Care 8/29/2023 
Endres, Tori, MD Pediatric/Pulmonary Medicine  8/30/2023 
Goodman, Lorenda, APRN-CNP Psychiatry 8/30/2023 
Kennedy, James, APRN-CNP  Psychiatry 8/30/2023 
Lee, Jessica, MD Neurology 8/30/2023 
Waghray, Abhijeet, MD  Medicine/Gastroenterology 8/30/2023 
Wiggins, Morgan, APRN-CNP  Psychiatry 8/30/2023 
Whitehair, Dawn, APRN-CNP  Psychiatry 8/30/2023 
Whitman, Daniel, MD  Medicine/Gastroenterology 8/30/2023 

*Non Reviewable Clean List
Privileged Non-Member 



     MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES -PAGE 4 9/8/2023  
ITEM TITLE/PRESENTER RECOMMENDATION/ACTIONS/MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS EVALUATION- 

Follow-up 

Name Department/Division Effective

Mally, Emily, LISW-S Infectious Disease/Social Work 8/30/2023 
Ware, Andrea, LISW-S Psychiatry/Social Work  8/30/2023 

August Reappointments 
Last Name First Name Degree Department/Division 
Ahsanuddin Sayeeda MD Dermatology 

Aiello Brittany 

DNP, 
APRN-
CNP Geriatric Medicine 

Barger Philip MD 
Pediatrics/Pediatric 
Cardiology 

Bartunek Aliza 
APRN-
CNP Pediatrics 

Bazzo Deborah 
APRN-
CNP Obstetrics & Gynecology 

Beal Laura 
APRN-
CNP Emergency Medicine 

Belcastro Leah 
APRN-
CNP Surgery/General Surgery 

Bitner Monica 
APRN-
CRNA Anesthesiology 

Bogdas Bernadette 
APRN-
CNP Family Medicine 

Broze Julie 
APRN-
CNS 

Medicine/Pulmonary 
Medicine 

Cancelliere Katherine 
APRN-
CNP Medicine/Hospital Medicine 

Catalani Amy 
APRN-
CNP Pediatrics 

Cirigliano Melissa MD Pediatrics 

Conley Kimberly 
APRN-
CNP Emergency Medicine 



     MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES -PAGE 5 9/8/2023  
ITEM TITLE/PRESENTER RECOMMENDATION/ACTIONS/MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS EVALUATION- 

Follow-up 

Coppola Eileen 
APRN-
CNP 

Family Medicine/Express 
Care 

Craig Marion 
APRN-
CNP Medicine/Pediatrics 

Dawson Carmen 
APRN-
CNP Obstetrics & Gynecology 

Doi Laura 
APRN-
CNP Obstetrics & Gynecology 

Dorsey Amelia MD Surgery/General Surgery 

El-Hayek Kevin MD Surgery/General Surgery 

Fogel Susan 
APRN-
CNP Neurology 

Forster-
Paulsen Denise 

APRN-
CNP Surgery 

Fowles Diane 
APRN-
CRNA Anesthesiology 

Gallup Andrea 
APRN-
CNP Surgery/Plastic Surgery 

Gampa Vikas MD Medicine/Internal Medicine 

Garden Naima 
APRN-
CNP Medicine/Endocrinology 

Gay Alishea 

DNP, 
APRN-
CNP Family Medicine 

Gedeon Scott 
APRN-
CNP Neurology 

Giller Annie 
APRN-
CNP Medicine/Gastroenterology 

Gordon-Ocejo Gloria 
APRN-
CNP Pediatrics 

Harrington Ann 
APRN-
CNS 

Physical Medicine & 
Rehabilitation 



     MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES -PAGE 6 9/8/2023  
ITEM TITLE/PRESENTER RECOMMENDATION/ACTIONS/MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS EVALUATION- 

Follow-up 

Harris Marlana 
APRN-
CRNA Anesthesiology 

Hehemann David DPM Orthopaedics/ Podiatry 

Hernandez Alicia 
APRN-
CNP Family Medicine 

Herringshaw Halle PA-C Dermatology 

Hudak Jennifer 

DNP, 
APRN-
CNP Geriatric Medicine 

Iacoboni Jacalyn 

DNP, 
APRN-
CNP Medicine/Internal Medicine 

Johnson Rikki 
APRN-
CNP Neurology 

Johnson Halee 
APRN-
CNP 

Surgery/Trauma/Critical 
Care/Burn 

Kaufmann Adam 
APRN-
CNP 

Family Medicine/Express 
Care 

Killings Tiffany 
APRN-
CNP Medicine/Infectious Disease 

Klepser Kristen 
APRN-
CNP 

Family Medicine/Express 
Care 

Kowalsky Stacy MD Surgery/Oncology 

Ladha Prerna MD 
Surgery/Trauma/Critical 
Care/Burn 

Lanzara Lisa 
APRN-
CNP Medicine/Cariology 

Lasinski Alaina MD 
Surgery/Trauma/Critical 
Care/Burn 

Lightbody Marjorie 
APRN-
CNP Medicine/Cardiology 

Lightner Barbara 
APRN-
CNP 

Pediatrics/Pediatric 
Endocrinology 



     MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES -PAGE 7 9/8/2023  
ITEM TITLE/PRESENTER RECOMMENDATION/ACTIONS/MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS EVALUATION- 

Follow-up 

Logan Leslie 
APRN-
CNM Obstetrics & Gynecology 

Lohr Melissa 
APRN-
CNP Pediatrics 

Lu Jason 
APRN-
CNP Emergency Medicine 

Luebke Donna 
APRN-
CNP Medicine/Cardiology 

Makino Kelly MD Family Medicine 

Malson James 
APRN-
CRNA Anesthesiology 

McCourt Jill 
APRN-
CNP Medicine 

McDonnell Marie 

DNP, 
APRN-
CNP Pediatrics 

Medve Nicole 
APRN-
CNP Neurology 

Mehra Lindsey 
APRN-
CNP Emergency Medicine 

Meyer Kathryn 

DNP, 
APRN-
CNP Medicine 

Mickan Paula 
APRN-
CNP Emergency Medicine 

Miller-Spalding Suzanne 
APRN-
CNP Surgery 

Modlin Charles MD Surgery 

Molnar Jill 
APRN-
CNP Medicine 

Moran Ellen 
APRN-
CNP Family Medicine 

Moratschek Sonal MD Psychiatry 



     MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES -PAGE 8 9/8/2023  
ITEM TITLE/PRESENTER RECOMMENDATION/ACTIONS/MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS EVALUATION- 

Follow-up 

Newbrough Kaitlyn 
APRN-
CNP Geriatric Medicine 

Ogunwumi Olumide PA-C Medicine 

Ohliger Alison 
APRN-
CRNA Anesthesiology 

Orta Andy DPM Orthopaedics 

Papajcik Doreen 
APRN-
CNP Medicine 

Papp Stefan 
APRN-
CNP 

Physical Medicine & 
Rehabilitation 

Peleg Gil DDS, MD Medicine 

Perch Kristopher 
APRN-
CNP Family Medicine 

Pressnell Meredith 
APRN-
CNP Medicine 

Quidilla Jo Anne Therese 
APRN-
CNP Anesthesiology 

Raffel Megan 
APRN-
CNP Medicine 

Rahhal Marie-Noel MD Medicine 

Randall Kerry 
APRN-
CNP Family Medicine 

Ratnam Maya MD Medicine 

Raymond Lindsey 
APRN-
CNP Medicine 

Rice Jonathon 
APRN-
CNP Medicine 

Robbins Nathaniel MD Pediatrics 

Rompala Jessica 
APRN-
CNP Family Medicine 

Sanders Cristina 
APRN-
CNP Medicine 



     MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES -PAGE 9 9/8/2023  
ITEM TITLE/PRESENTER RECOMMENDATION/ACTIONS/MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS EVALUATION- 

Follow-up 

Schuller Mindy 
APRN-
CNP Family Medicine 

Schulte-Laird Lori-Anne 
APRN-
CNP Psychiatry 

Schwartz Ryan MD Radiology 

Scott Erica 
APRN-
CNP Family Medicine 

Sirey Michelle 
APRN-
CNP Medicine 

Snyder Wayne 
APRN-
CNP Medicine 

Stephen Jillian 
APRN-
CNP 

Physical Medicine & 
Rehabilitation 

Stone Lisa 
APRN-
CNP Pediatrics 

Stover Jenna 
APRN-
CNP Pediatrics 

Stredney Carrie 
APRN-
CNP Family Medicine 

Thombs Natalie 
APRN-
CNS Surgery 

Tirbaso Deanna 
APRN-
CNP Medicine 

Vosniak Audrey 
APRN-
CNP Family Medicine 

Washington Carlise 
APRN-
CNP Anesthesiology 

Washington Tina MD Radiology 

Westfall Donna 
APRN-
CNP Geriatric Medicine 

White Jennifer 
APRN-
CNP Pediatrics 



     MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES -PAGE 10 9/8/2023  
ITEM TITLE/PRESENTER RECOMMENDATION/ACTIONS/MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS EVALUATION- 

Follow-up 

Wilcox Toni 
APRN-
CNP 

Physical Medicine & 
Rehabilitation 

Williams Fannie 

DNP, 
APRN-
CNP Geriatric Medicine 

Yousef John 
APRN-
CNP Family Medicine 

Zhang David MD Pediatrics 

Zupancic Julie 

DNP, 
APRN-
CNP Pediatrics 

APP Update No APP Update for 
September 

No action required 

Standing 
Agenda Item 

Length of Stay Presentation by Dr. Michael Lewis No action required 

Policies ED Beta Blocker and 
Calcium Blocker 
Overdose Therapy 

 
4788 ED Beta Blocker 
and CCB OD Tx.pdf

Motion approved with 
Revisions 

Protocol Narcan Protocol 

Narcan Protocol for 
CNE.docx

This was approved by CNE 7/6.   This will not replace the ED’s Overdose Protocol as they 
have almost immediate access to a provider to continue treatment.  The System protocol will 
allow for treatment at those areas where they may need to call 9-1-1. 

Motion carried to 
Approve 



     MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES -PAGE 11 9/8/2023  
ITEM TITLE/PRESENTER RECOMMENDATION/ACTIONS/MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS EVALUATION- 

Follow-up 

Other 
Business 

Pharmacy Consent 
Agreement Updates 
Distributed 
electronically in 
August. Presentation 
by Christina 
Wadsworth and 
Joanna Brell 

MM-06A_-_Managi
ng_Pharmacist_Cons

MM-06_-_Pharmacis
t_and_Provider_Con

MM-06C_-_MetroHe
alth_Pharmacy_Cred

GDLStressUlcerProp
hylaxisCHD - MH 6.3

CPA - Substance 
Use Disorder_072623

MM-06B_-_Consult_
Agreement_Disease_

Motion carried to 
Approve 

Meeting 
Adjourned 



Medical Staff Newsletter – September 2023 

mailto:calexander@metrohealth.org
mailto:njoseph@metrohealth.org?subject=Telephone%20Directory
mailto:pgallagher@metrohealth.org
mailto:cherbert@metrohealth.org


Medical Staff Newsletter – September 2023 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 778-4391 



Medical Staff Newsletter – September 2023 

mailto:lfrater@metrohealth.org


Medical Staff Newsletter – September 2023 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

mailto:compliance@metrohealth.org
mailto:compliance@metrohealth.org
mailto:experience@metrohealth.org


Medical Staff Newsletter – September 2023 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



Medical Staff Newsletter – September 2023 

• 

• 

• 

mailto:cwruapt@metrohealth.org
mailto:cherbert@metrohealth.org


Medical Staff Newsletter – September 2023 

• 

• 

• 

• 



Medical Staff Newsletter – September 2023 

mailto:cherbert@metrohealth.org


mailto:metrohealthy@metrohealth.org


mailto:metrohealthy@metrohealth.org


The MetroWAY 
Forward
The WAY we do.
What we do.
Every day.

Joseph Golob, MD – SVP Chief Quality and Safety Officer
Dalph Watson, JD – EVP Chief People Officer



MetroHealth True North

CMS 
Hospital 

Compare 5-
star Hospital

Leapfrog 
Grade “A”

Top Place to 
Work

Eliminate 
Healthcare 
Disparities

Financial 
Health

Top Performer 
in Patient 

Experience

Overcome 
workforce 

crisis

Win the 
Malcolm 
Baldrige 
National 

Quality Award

Every patient we 
touch will receive 

equitable, safe, high 
quality, patient 

centered care to 
afford them the 
ultimate patient 

experience

2

Every employee has 
a voice and is 

listened to

Every employee is 
working 

collaboratively 
toward Ture North



MetroHealth Six Pillars
The building blocks of everything we do. 

3



Call for Action and Change!

Prospective Payment System
~$760,000 Loss

4

Turnover Rate Past 12 months Since 1/1/2022

Respiratory 28.40% 43.80%

Pathology 
(blood bank & 
core lab)

21.40% 40%

Radiology 22% 41%

Corrections 41.50% 64.40%

Turnover

Vacancy Rate 34.5%

Turnover 43.1%

Med Surg



How do we Transform…

5



Our Solution…

The MetroWAY Forward

6



What is the MetroWAY Forward?

It’s a people first culture that empowers all 8,700 employees to use their 
experience, expertise, creativity, knowledge and talents to find smarter, better, 
and more innovative ways to accelerate our way toward True North.

It’s a clinical, operational, cultural and financial transformation.

It’s the WAY we do. What we do. Every day.

7



8

What is the MetroWAY Forward?

It’s a journey of continuous learning and improvement toward True North.

It’s never being happy with mediocracy.

It’s the pride of wearing a MetroHealth ID Badge.

It’s how we interact and LISTEN to our patients, staff, and community.

It’s a people first culture.



9

MetroWAY Forward is a: 
Cultural Transformation



On this people-first foundation, our other strategic pillars will stand strong – and grow stronger:

10

The MetroWAY Forward is a People First 
Culture

• CLINICAL AND ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE

• HEALTH EQUITY

• COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND IMPACT

• INNOVATION

• ACCELERATED GROWTH



What is a people-first culture? 

Respect to our patients and 
to each other. 

Treasures and appreciates 
the true value of every 

person that touches our 
organization. 

Nurtures and nourishes 
empathy, empowerment, 

inclusiveness, compassion, 
curiousness, courage and 

creativity. 

11



The KPIs of a people-first culture 

Keep People Informed

Keep People Involved

Keep People Inspired

Keep People Interested

12



MetroWAY Forward Pyramid

Inform
ation Flow

Community, Patients 
and their Families

Front Line 
Staff

Chairs, 
Directors and 

Managers

Leadership
Ideas, Solutions &

 Learning

Vison, Strategy, &
 Values

The center of everything we do. 
Involved in everything we do

Continuously learning. Identify 
problems, suggest improvements, 
eliminate waste, implement their own 
solutions with manager support

Lead by asking questions.  Listen. 
Provide support to staff making 
improvements

Sets the tone for improvement. Set 
vision, shared goals, and supports staff 
innovation and solutions. 

13



MetroWAY Forward Tools and Tactics

Psychological 
Safety

Comfort 
admitting 
mistakes

Learning 
from failure

Everyone 
shares ideas

Better 
innovation 

and decision 
making

A belief that one will not be 
punished or humiliated for 
speaking up with ideas, 
questions, concerns, mistakes, 
and that the team is safe for 
interpersonal risk taking.
Amy Edmondson

14



MetroWAY Forward Tools and Tactics

Mindsets, 
Behaviors, Actions

1. How must we all show up every day?

2. What behaviors do we need -
(of our employees & leaders to model)?

3. What actions do we use to improve?

Vision1 Outcomes3

15



MetroWAY Forward Tools and Tactics

16

• Direct and meaningful engagement

• Transparency

• Open communication

• Active listening



17

MetroWAY Forward is a:
Clinical Transformation

Operational Transformation
Financial Transformation



MetroWAY Forward Tools and Tactics

Listen.   Ask Questions.   Remove Barriers
The frontline know the solutions to our daily work inefficiencies.  We just need to ask them!

18



MetroWAY Forward Tools and Tactics

19

Healthy Conversations and Community Advisory Councils



MetroWAY Forward Tools and Tactics

Standard Work:
• Is a fundamental principle of Lean thinking.
• The foundation for continuous improvement.

Standard work:
• Establishes precise procedures for every role in a

defined process to ensure delivery equitable, safe,
high-quality patient-centered care (True North).

• Benefits team members on all shifts by documenting
the process, reducing variability, building trust, and
reducing risks to patients and staff.

Standard work:
• Clarifies roles and responsibilities.
• Creates a focus on both Leader and Operator standard

work.

The MetroWAY Forward

20



MetroWAY Forward Tools and Tactics

Employees 
directly 
engaged in 
problem 
solving, 
continuous 
improvement 
and innovation

21



The MetroWAY 
Forward

The WAY we do.
What we do.

Every Day.

22



September 2023 

RECOMMENDATION TO THE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
OF THE METROHEALTH SYSTEM 

FOR APPROVAL OF A CLAIM SETTLEMENT 

Recommendation 

The Senior Vice President, General Counsel recommends that The MetroHealth System 
approve the settlement of claim number 21-25-0521 in an amount not to exceed $1,750,000 
for The MetroHealth System, to be paid out of operations and to be submitted for 
reimbursement by Select Assurance Captive, LLC.   

Background 

The Board has reviewed this claim with the General Counsel.  This authorization does not 
admit liability in this claim but expressly denies the same, and the settlement is authorized 
only in compromise of a disputed matter.  The underlying facts and other considerations 
have been previously discussed with the Board of Trustees. 



September 2023 

Approval of a Claim Settlement 

****** 

RESOLUTION XXXXX 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of The MetroHealth System has been presented a 
recommendation for the settlement of Claim No. 21-25-0521; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has reviewed this recommendation and now recommends 
its approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Trustees of The MetroHealth System 
hereby approves settlement of Claim No. 21-25-0521 in an amount not to exceed 
$1,750,000 to be paid out of operations and to be submitted for reimbursement by Select 
Assurance Captive, LLC. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the President and Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized 
to negotiate and execute agreements and other documents consistent with this 
resolution. 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSTAINED: 

DATE:  


	Cover Page
	Agenda
	Agenda

	Agenda - Confidential
	Agenda - Confidential

	I.  Approval of Minutes
	I.  Approval of Minutes

	II.  Mission Moment
	III. Committee Reports
	IV.  President and CEO's Report
	President and CEO's Report

	V. Medical Staff Report
	V. Medical Staff Reports
	Medical Staff Newsletter
	Medical Staff Report

	VI.  Informational Items
	VI. The MetroWAY Forward

	VII.  Executive Session
	A. Related Entities Update
	B. MetroHealth Employee Health Plan Benefit Changes

	VIII.  Recommendation/Resolution Approvals
	VIII.  Recommendation/Resolution Approvals


